
 

 
 
Lone Tree City Council Agenda 
Tuesday, April 15, 2014 

 
Meeting Location:  City Council Meeting Room, Lone Tree Civic Center, 8527 Lone Tree Parkway. 
Meeting Procedure: The Lone Tree City Council and staff will meet in a public Study Session at 4:30 p.m.  At 
6:00 p.m. and following the meeting, if necessary, the Council Meeting will adjourn and convene in Executive 
Session. If an Executive Session is not necessary, Council will recess for dinner. The Regular Session will be 
convened at 7:00 p.m. Study Sessions and Regular Sessions are open to the public, Executive Sessions are not. 
Comments from the public are welcome at these occasions: 1. Public Comment (brief comments on items not 
scheduled for a public hearing) 2. Public Hearings. Contact the City Clerk if special arrangements are needed to 
attend (at least 24 hours in advance).

 
4:30 pm Study Session Agenda 

1. Kevin Spencer Community Residency Report 
2. Kaiser Permanente Grant Update  
3. Resolution 14-10, SUPPORTING A CHARTER AMENDMENT TO REQUIRE A 

MAJORITY VOTE FOR THE ELECTION OF MAYOR AND PROVIDING FOR 
RUNOFF ELECTIONS FOR MAYOR

6:00pm Executive Session Agenda 
1. Roll Call 
2. Executive Session 

 
7:00pm Regular Session Agenda 

3. Opening of Regular Meeting/Pledge of Allegiance 
4. Amendments to the Agenda and Adoption of the Agenda 
5. Conflict of Interest Inquiry 
6. Public Comment 
7. Announcements 
8. Consent Agenda 

a. Minutes of the April 1, 2014 Regular Meeting 
b. Claims for the Period of March 24 – April 14, 2014 
c. Treasurer’s Report for February, 2014 

9. Community Development 
a. Charles Schwab SIP 2nd Amendment #SP14-11R  
b. Resolution 14-08, ADOPTING A PLAN FOR THE AREA WITHIN THREE 

MILES OF THE CITY BOUNDARY #MI14-20  
10. Administrative Matters 

a. Resolution 14-09, APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE YOUTH COMMISSION  
b. Resolution 14-10, SUPPORTING A CHARTER AMENDMENT TO REQUIRE A 

MAJORITY VOTE FOR THE ELECTION OF MAYOR AND PROVIDING FOR 
RUNOFF ELECTIONS FOR MAYOR 

c. Resolution 14-11, DESIGNATING LONE TREE ARTS CENTER AS THE 
SUCCESSOR ENTITY TO THE LONE TREE ARTS COMMISSION FOR 
FUNDS TO SUPPORT CULTURAL PROGRAMS  

11. Council Comments 
12. Adjournment 

 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 1 of 90



 

City Council Minutes Page 1 of 10 April 1, 2014 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
HELD 

April 1, 2014 
 

A regular meeting of the Council of the City of Lone Tree was held on Tuesday, 
April 1, 2014, at 6:00 p.m., at the Lone Tree City Council Chambers located at 
8527 Lone Tree Parkway, Lone Tree, Colorado 80124. 
  

 
Attendance  
  In attendance were: 
 

James D. Gunning, Mayor 
Jacqueline Millet, Mayor Pro Tem 
Harold Anderson, Council Member 
Kim Monson, Council Member  
Susan Squyer, Council Member 
 
Also in attendance were: 

 
Seth Hoffman, City Manager 
Jennifer Pettinger, City Clerk 
Steve Hebert, Deputy City Manager 
Chief Jeffery Streeter, Lone Tree Police Department 
Kristin Baumgartner, Finance Director  
Kelly First, Community Development Director 
Lisa Rigsby Peterson, Lone Tree Arts Center Director 
Neil Rutledge, Assistant City Attorney, White, Bear and Ankele, P.C. 
John Cotten, Public Works Director, TST, Inc. 
   

 
Call to Order 
  Mayor Gunning called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m., and observed that a  
  quorum was present. 

  
 
Executive Session 

Mayor Gunning announced City Council intends to convene in Executive Session.  
Neil Rutledge, Assistant City Attorney, stated the Executive Session would be for 
the purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal questions under C.R.S. 
Section 24-6-402(4)(b) regarding quasi-judicial actions by the City Council.  
Council Member Anderson moved, seconded by Council Member Squyer, for 
City Council to recess and convene in Executive Session for the reasons stated.  
The motion passed unanimously. 
 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 2 of 90



 

City Council Minutes Page 2 of 10 April 1, 2014 

Council adjourned to an Executive Session at 6:02 p.m. 
 
The Executive Session was adjourned at 6:19 p.m. 
 
Mayor Gunning reconvened the meeting in Regular Session at 7:01 p.m., 
following a short recess. 
   

 
Pledge of Allegiance  
  Mayor Gunning led those assembled in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance. 
    
 
Amendments to the Agenda 

There were no amendments to the agenda.  
______ 

 
Conflict of Interest 

There was no conflict of interest. 
______ 

 
Announcements 

Patrick Britti, Youth Commissioner, gave Council an update on the Youth 
Commission. 
 

Public Comment 
Doug MacGregor, thanked Council and Staff for the great job they are doing. 
______  
  

Announcements cont. 
Mayor Gunning announced upcoming events. 
______ 
  

Presentations 
There were no presentations. 
______  
 

Consent Agenda 
Mayor Gunning noted the following items on the Consent Agenda, which 
consisted of: 

 
§ Minutes of the March 18, 2014 Regular Meeting 
§ Claims for the period of March 10-24, 2014 

 
Council Member Squyer moved, Mayor Pro Tem Millet seconded, to approve the 
Consent Agenda.  The motion passed unanimously. 
   

 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 3 of 90



 

City Council Minutes Page 3 of 10 April 1, 2014 

Community Development 
RidgeGate Lincoln Commons Commercial/Mixed Use Sub-Area Plan #SA14-03R 
and 
RidgeGate Section 15 Filing No. 21 Subdivision Replat #SB13-43R 
 
Kelly First, Community Development Director, introduced both items. Keith 
Simon, RidgeGate Development Director, also gave a presentation on the two 
items. 
 
Council Member Monson moved, Council Member Squyer seconded, to approve 
RidgeGate Lincoln Commons Commercial/Mixed Use Sub-Area Plan #SA14-
03R.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Millet moved, Council Member Anderson seconded, to approve 
RidgeGate Section 15 Filing No. 21 Subdivision Replat #SB13-43R, subject to 
the three conditions as noted in the staff report.  The motion passed unanimously. 
  
 

Public Works 
Approval of Aggregate Industrial-WCE, Inc. Contract for the 2014 Asphalt 
Overlay Contract 
 
John Cotten, Public Works Director, introduced the item.  
 
Council Member Monson moved, Council Member Squyer seconded, to approve 
the contract with Aggregate Industrial-WCE, Inc. in the amount of $789,292.25 
for the 2014 Asphalt Overlay Program and authorize the Public Works Director to 
execute the contract documents. The motion passed unanimously. 
  
 

Administrative Matters 
Public Hearing: Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License Application for Cita Corp, 
LLC d/b/a Lyfe Kitchen (8505 Park Meadows Drive, Suite 2184A) 

   
Mayor Gunning opened the public hearing at 7:32 p.m.  
 
Jennifer Pettinger, City Clerk, introduced the item and introduced DJ Mitchell, 
III, applicant, and Carol Johnson, petitioner. Ms. Johnson answered questions 
from Council.  
 
Mayor Gunning opened the public hearing at 7:37 p.m.  
 
Mr. Britti asked the location of the restaurant. 
 
The public hearing was closed at 7:38 p.m.  
 
Council Member Anderson moved, Mayor Pro Tem Millet seconded, to approve a 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 4 of 90



 

City Council Minutes Page 4 of 10 April 1, 2014 

new Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License for Cita Corp, LLC d/b/a Lyfe Kitchen 
at 8505 Park Meadows Drive, Suite 2184A.  The motion passed unanimously. 
  
Public Hearing: Ordinance 14-03, AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE TO 
MODIFY THE DISTANCE RESTRICTION ON APPLICATIONS FOR 
CERTAIN NEW LIQUOR LICENSES, PURSUANT TO THE COLORADO 
LIQUOR CODE (Second Reading)  

   
Mayor Gunning opened the public hearing at 7:40 p.m.  
 
Neil Rutledge, Assistant City Attorney introduced the item.  
 
Mayor Gunning opened the public hearing for comment at 7:40 p.m.  
 
There was no public comment.   
 
The public hearing was closed at 7:41 p.m. 
 
Council Member Anderson moved, Council Member Monson seconded, to 
approve Ordinance 14-03, AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE TO 
MODIFY THE DISTANCE RESTRICTION ON APPLICATIONS FOR 
CERTAIN NEW LIQUOR LICENSES, PURSUANT TO THE COLORADO 
LIQUOR CODE on Second Reading.  The motion passed unanimously. 
  
Approval of Commissioners’ Choice Selection – Rita Derjue  
 
Lisa Rigsby Peterson, Lone Tree Arts Center Director, introduced the item. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Millet moved, Council Member Squyer seconded, to approve the 
Lone Tree Arts Commission’s recommendation to exhibit Rita Derjue for the 
Commissioners’ Choice Program at Lone Tree Arts Center. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
   
Resolution 14-06, APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION (Kline) 
  
Council Member Anderson introduced the item. Council Member Squyer asked 
about Mr. Kline’s term expiration and suggested it be amended to concur with 
Mr. Sauder’s term expiration and Resolution 14-07 be amended the same.  
 
Council Member Squyer moved, Council Member Monson seconded, to approve 
Resolution 14-06, APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION (Kline) as amended with Mr. Kline’s term expiring on October 
31, 2016. The motion passed unanimously. 
  
Resolution 14-07, A RESOLUTION EXTENDING THE TERM FOR CITY 
COMMISSION, BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 5 of 90



 

City Council Minutes Page 5 of 10 April 1, 2014 

 
Neil Rutledge, Assistant City Attorney introduced the item.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Millet moved, Council Member Squyer seconded, to approve 
Resolution 14-07, A RESOLUTION EXTENDING THE TERM FOR 
CITY COMMISSION, BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS as 
amended with Mr. Kline’s current term expiration as 10/31/2016. The motion 
passed unanimously. 
  

 
Adjournment  

There being no further business, Mayor Gunning adjourned the meeting at  
7:56 p.m. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
       
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 
 

  

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 6 of 90



 

City Council Minutes Page 6 of 10 April 1, 2014 

 

FINAL STAFF REPORT 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Gunning and City Council 
 
FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director 
  
DATE: April 2, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: RidgeGate Lincoln Commons Commercial/Mixed-Use Sub-Area Plan 

(Amendment to RidgeGate Retail District West Sub-Area Plan) 
 Project File #SA14-03R 
  
 
Owner:      Representative: 
Lincoln Commons South, Inc.   Coventry Development 
1041 Third Avenue, 2nd Fl.    Darryl Jones/Keith Simon 
New York, NY  10065    10270 Commonwealth St., Ste B 
      Lone Tree, CO, 80124 
 
     
 
Planning Commission Meeting Date:   February 25, 2014    
City Council Meeting Date:        April 1, 2014     
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

A. CITY COUNCIL ACTION: 
 

The City Council unanimously approved the application, with no conditions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
END  
  

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 7 of 90



 

City Council Minutes Page 7 of 10 April 1, 2014 

 
FINAL STAFF REPORT 

 
TO:  Mayor Gunning and City Council 
 
FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director 
   
DATE: April 2, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: RidgeGate Section 15 Filing No. No. 21 
 Subdivision Replat #SB13-43R 
  
 
Owner:      Representative: 
Lincoln Commons South, Inc.   Keith Simon 
Rampart Range Metropolitan District No 1 10270 Commonwealth Street 
RidgeGate Investments, Inc.   Lone Tree, CO 80124 
 

City Council Meeting Date:     April 1, 2014 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

B. COUNCIL ACTION: 
 
The City Council unanimously approved the application, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
1. Final approval by the City of Lone Tree Public Works Department. 

 
2. Prior to recordation of this plat, the proposed amendment to the applicable Sub-Area 

Plan (Lincoln Commons C/M-U Sub-Area Plan, Project # SA14-03R) shall be 
approved. (This has been satisfied. Council approved the Sub-Area Plan on April 1, 
2014). 

 
3. Prior to final approval, a note shall be added to the plat document indicating that 

prior to approval of a Certificate of Occupancy for any development within Filing 21 
west of Belvedere Lane, the intersection of Arts Center Drive with Commons Street 
shall be constructed to be in alignment with the main drive entrance to the property to 
the west.  
 
 

END  

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 8 of 90



 

City Council Minutes Page 8 of 10 April 1, 2014 

FINDINGS AND REPORT TO STATE LICENSING AUTHORITY BY THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF LONE TREE ACTING AS THE 

LOCAL LICENSING AUTHORITY ON THE APPLICATION FOR A  
HOTEL & RESTAURANT LIQUOR LICENSE 

 
Cita Corp, LLC d/b/a Lyfe Kitchen 

 
A public hearing was held by the City Council of Lone Tree, State of Colorado, acting as Local 
Licensing Authority at approximately 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday, April 1, 2014 at 8527 Lone Tree 
Parkway, Lone Tree, Colorado, on the application of Cita Corp, LLC d/b/a Lyfe Kitchen, 8505 
Park Meadows Drive, Suite 2184A, Lone Tree, Colorado 80124.          

                                                                               

At said hearing, the following Members of the Council were present: 

 Mayor James D. Gunning 

 Mayor Pro Tem Jackie Millet 

 Council Member Harold Anderson 

Council Member Kim Monson 

Council Member Susan Squyer 

 
Also present were:  

Seth Hoffman, City Manager 

Jennifer Pettinger, City Clerk 

DJ Mitchell, III, Applicant 

Carol Johnson, Petitioner  

 

The Honorable Mayor James D. Gunning presided.  The hearing was duly convened to 
consider the Application and conduct a public hearing thereon. 

City Clerk, Jennifer Pettinger noted that the City Council was in receipt of a packet of 
information which contained copies of: the license application, franchise agreement, red-lined 
drawing of the premises, lease agreement, individual history records, articles of incorporation, 
Secretary of State’s Certificate of Good Standing, Lone Tree business license application, 
affidavit of posting, affidavit of publication and petition submittal.  She noted staff has reviewed 
all the documents and directed the information be made a part of the record. 

City Clerk, Jennifer Pettinger gave a brief presentation concerning the application and 
provided evidence of posting to the Council.  Ms. Pettinger introduced DJ Mitchell, III, 
Applicant and Carol Johnson, Petitioner. Carol Johnson answered questions about the petition.  

The petitions supporting the application were reviewed and found to be in accordance 
with and in conformity with the City of Lone Tree Liquor and Fermented Malt Beverage 
Regulations and were accepted into evidence by the Authority. 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 9 of 90



 

City Council Minutes Page 9 of 10 April 1, 2014 

Mayor Gunning opened the hearing for public testimony. No one came forward. 

 
Following a brief discussion by the City Council, the hearing was closed to public 

testimony. 
 

The City Council, acting as the Local Licensing Authority, having fully considered the 
application and testimony submitted by the Applicant, and the other evidence adduced at the 
hearing, NOW FINDS as follows: 

 
Cita Corp, LLC d/b/a Lyfe Kitchen 
Findings and Report to the State 
 

1. The public hearing held with respect to said Application on Tuesday, April 1, 2014, 
was duly convened and the Council has jurisdiction to consider the Application as the 
Local Licensing Authority. 

 
2. Applicant seeks approval of an application for a Hotel & Restaurant Liquor License 

at 8505 Park Meadows Drive, Suite 2184A, Lone Tree, Colorado 80124.  The 
Application was submitted on a form prescribed by the State Licensing Authority 
pursuant to statute, and said application appears to be complete in all material 
respects.  The required fees accompanied the application. 

 
3. The Council has reviewed the Individual History Records of the owners and the 

managers. Council finds that the Applicant has satisfied the requirements of the 
Colorado Liquor Code and Regulations with respect to character, record, and 
reputation. 

 
4. The Applicant has evidenced possession of the subject property through a lease 

agreement that will expire on January 31, 2024. 
 

5. The premise was posted in accordance with the law, for a period of not less than ten 
consecutive days prior to the date of said public hearing on the application, and 
published notice was accomplished by publication in a newspaper of general 
circulation in Douglas County. 

 
6. Petitions containing 154 valid signatures in favor of and 0 valid signatures in 

opposition to the issuance of the license were presented to and considered by the 
Council.  

 
7.  No one appeared in opposition. 

 
  The City Council, acting as the Local Licensing Authority, having considered and 
weighed the foregoing, as well as the facts and evidence adduced by the Council’s investigation, 
expressions of opinion as to the needs and desires of the inhabitants of the neighborhood 
contained in the aforementioned Petitions and all other facts, data and testimony, NOW FINDS 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 10 of 90



 

City Council Minutes Page 10 of 10 April 1, 2014 

that the Applicant has demonstrated, with respect to the application, that the needs and desires of 
the neighborhood are not adequately being served at this time. 
 
 Accordingly, the City Council hereby affirms its approval of the application of Cita 
Corp, LLC d/b/a Lyfe Kitchen, 8505 Park Meadows Drive, Suite 2184A, Lone Tree, Colorado 
80124. 
 

The City Council hereby authorizes and directs the Liquor Licensing Administrator 
to submit the necessary report and approved application to the State Licensing Authority 
in accordance with the law. 

 
 

BY ORDER OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LONE TREE, 
COLORADO, acting as Local Licensing Authority. 

 
 
     

 CITY OF LONE TREE: 
 
 
 
By:________/s/__________________ 
      Jennifer Pettinger 
      Liquor License Administrator 
 
 

Date:  April 1, 2014 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 11 of 90



 

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Project Summary 

 
 
Date:   April 15, 2014 City Council Meeting 
 
 
Project Name: Charles Schwab Office Campus SIP, 2nd amendment (Phase 2) 

RidgeGate Section 15, Filing 19, Lot 1 
   
 
Location: South of Lincoln Avenue, west of Park Meadows Boulevard and 

north of Sky Ridge Avenue. 
 
 
Project Type / #: SIP amendment / #SP14-11R 
 
 
 
Staff Contact: Kelly First, Community Development Director 
 
  
 
Meeting Type: Public Meeting  
 
 
Summary of Request:   

Amendment of the Charles Schwab SIP for Phase 2 development 
including the Third Office Building, a second parking garage, and 
enclosed pedestrian bridge and a small guard house. 

 
 
Planning Commission Recommendation: 
  
 Approval by 6-1 vote. 
 
  
Suggested Action: Approval, subject to conditions listed in this staff report. 
 

 
 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 12 of 90



Charles Schwab Office Campus 
Site Improvement Plan 
Project File # SP14-11R 

2 
 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
TO:  Mayor Gunning and City Council 
 
FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director 
   
DATE: April 8, 2014 
 
FOR:  April 15, 2014 City Council Meeting 
 
SUBJECT: Charles Schwab Office Campus SIP, 2nd amendment (Phase 2) 
 RidgeGate Section 15 Filing 19, Lot 1 
 #SP14-11R 
  
Owner:     Representative:   
Charles Schwab Co., Inc.   Kelly Dunn, Fentress Architects  
211 Main Street    421 Broadway 
San Francisco, CA 94105   Denver, CO 80203 
Lone Tree, CO 80124    303-282-6088 
415-667-4712  
 
 
Planning Commission Meeting Date:   March 25, 2014   
City Council Meeting Date:      April 15, 2014 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

A. REQUEST: 
 

Approval of a Site Improvement Plan (SIP) amendment for Phase 2 of the 
Charles Schwab Office Campus located on 32 acres in RidgeGate. This 
application involves a third, 187,500 square-foot office building, a second 
parking garage that will house 1,233 vehicles, an enclosed pedestrian 
bridge connecting the third office building to the amenities building, and a 
small guard house.  
 

B. LOCATION: 
 
The campus is located south of Lincoln Avenue, west of Park Meadows 
Boulevard and north of Sky Ridge Avenue. Undeveloped property also 
owned by the applicant is located south of Sky Ridge Avenue. The 
extension of Bellwether Lane north to Lincoln Avenue will also be 
completed with this project and will form the western boundary of the site. 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 13 of 90



Charles Schwab Office Campus 
Site Improvement Plan 
Project File # SP14-11R 

3 
 

The Willow Creek detention area and the Lincoln Commons commercial 
area are located beyond Bellwether Lane to the west.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

C. SITE CHARACTERISTICS: 
 

The site slopes generally from the south down to the northwest, with over 
30 feet of fall from the southeast corner of the site to the northwest corner. 
The buildings on the campus are designed to step down with the 
topography from east to west. The site is currently under construction with 
Phase 1 improvements.     
 
 

D. SERVICE PROVIDERS:   
 
Water:   Southgate Water District 
Sanitation:  Southgate Sanitation District 
Police:  Lone Tree Police 
Fire:   South Metro Fire Rescue Authority 
Special Districts: Rampart Range Metropolitan District 

Guard House 

Office Building 
Three 

Pedestrian Bridge 

Parking Garage 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 14 of 90



Charles Schwab Office Campus 
Site Improvement Plan 
Project File # SP14-11R 

4 
 

 
 

E. BACKGROUND: 
 

The original SIP was approved by the City Council on March 19, 2013 and 
serves as the master plan for the campus. The master plan includes the 
overall site and building layout, parking, landscaping, grading, lighting and 
utility plan for the campus, as well as building details for Office Buildings 
One and Two, the amenities center and first parking garage. An 
amendment to the SIP was approved on June 25, 2013 for the retail 
branch building located at the southwest corner of Lincoln Avenue and 
Park Meadows Boulevard.  
 
The Phase 2 improvements associated with this SIP amendment are 
consistent with the master plan. The guard house and pedestrian building 
connection were not originally anticipated and are detailed in this 
amendment. 
 
This parcel is platted as Lot 1, RidgeGate Section 15, and Filing 19, which 
was approved by the City Council on September 18, 2012. The SIP is 
consistent with the plat, which established the lot, tracts and right-of-way 
alignments shown on this SIP. The use of the property is consistent with 
the RidgeGate PDD zoning.  

 
 

F. DESCRIPTION: 
 

Zoning.   
The project is compliant with RidgeGate Planned Development District 
(PDD), 4th Amendment Development Plan. The site is within Commercial 
Mixed Use (C/M-U) Planning Area #2 of that PDD, which allows for a 
broad range of commercial/office/multi-family and other non- residential 
uses including office. The proposed building heights are less than that 
which is permitted by zoning (the office buildings are 5-stories; the PDD 
permits approximately 12-story buildings in this area).  The project is in 
substantial compliance with the RidgeGate Office District Sub-Area Plan, 
with the general exception that it does not place buildings along Park 
Meadows Boulevard and a portion of Sky Ridge Avenue. That issue was 
evaluated as part of the original SIP and was determined to be an 
acceptable variation.  
 
Access.   
There are five vehicular access points into the site providing for multiple 
ways to distribute traffic. The main entrance from Park Meadows 
Boulevard aligns with Chatham Street to the east and will be a full 
signalized intersection. Two points of access are from Bellwether Lane 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 15 of 90



Charles Schwab Office Campus 
Site Improvement Plan 
Project File # SP14-11R 

5 
 

and two others from Sky Ridge Avenue. Visitors will primarily use the 
northernmost entries from Park Meadows Boulevard and Bellwether Lane, 
while employees will more often use the other points.   
 
Pedestrian access and circulation are provided through an integrated 
system of trails and sidewalks throughout the site and with links to 
surrounding sites. The future traffic signal at Park Meadows Boulevard 
and Chatham will facilitate pedestrian connection between the site and 
uses to the east including the future Sky Ridge light rail stop. Access to 
the park and trail system and retail to the west of the site can be 
accommodated at the intersections of Bellwether Lane and Lincoln 
Avenue and Bellwether Lane and Sky Ridge Avenue.    
 
Parking.   
Parking for the campus will be accommodated by a combination of 
structured and surface parking. A parking variance was granted in 
conjunction with the master SIP that allows the campus to park at a much 
higher ratio than that which the City would typically require for office 
buildings. The City Zoning Code requires a ratio based on 1 space/300 
square feet. However, based on the number of employees expected, a 
parking ratio of just under 6 spaces/1000 was requested and was 
approved. This SIP amendment is consistent with the parking approved 
with the original SIP. 
 
During review of the original master SIP, staff had expressed concern 
about the extensive use of surface parking associated with Phase 1. At 
the time, the southeast portion of the site was planned as surface parking 
in the interim until it would be replaced with a parking garage as part of 
Phase 2. However, the accelerated timing of Phase 2 has allayed that 
concern.  At full build out of Phases 1 and 2, the total amount of parking 
on site will be approximately 3,000 spaces. Of that, 2,182 spaces or 
approximately 73% of the total parking will be provided in the two parking 
garages. This helps reduce the visual and environmental impacts of 
surface parking while still meeting the projected parking demands of the 
campus. Additionally, the owner believes that parking demand may be 
reduced over time as employees take advantage of the future light rail and 
adjust driving habits. If that is the case, surface parking could be further 
reduced by being replaced with potential future building phases on the 
south side of the site, or absorbed for use by future buildings.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 16 of 90



Charles Schwab Office Campus 
Site Improvement Plan 
Project File # SP14-11R 

6 
 

 
 
Building Design. 
 
Office Building Three: 
The office building size, height, massing and architectural design is 
replicated on all three buildings of the campus with materials consisting of 
earth-toned, pre-cast concrete and glass curtain wall systems. Office 
Building Three is consistent with the design approach that was established 
and approved with the original SIP. This building will incorporate an 
enclosed pedestrian bridge at the east end, connecting it at the second 
floor with the upper level of the amenities building. The design of the 
bridge is in keeping with the overall architectural character of the 
buildings. 
 
Parking Garage: 
The parking garage will be 5 levels (approximately 30 feet lower than the 
height of the 5-story office buildings), and will accommodate 1,233 
vehicles. Like the first parking garage, materials consist of architectural 
precast panels. A darker, textured precast will be used at the lower level to 
serve as a base, and the upper levels will have a smoother buff-colored 
precast. The primary pedestrian entry into the garage is marked by a 
vertical circulation tower near the northeast corner of the structure. The 
height of the tower projects above the main height of the structure, serving 
as a focal point, and the tower will contain the elevator and stairs will a 
glass curtainwall.  
 
Given the character of the architecture that has already been approved for 
the campus, and the context of the garage location as a secondary focus 
of the campus, staff feels that the design of the garage is appropriate and 
consistent with the City’s Design Guidelines. Landscaping around the 
perimeter of the structure, combined with landscaping along Park 
Meadows Boulevard, will help soften the appearance of the garage. The 
RidgeGate DRC has reviewed and approved the design.  
 
Guard House: 
The proposed guard house is positioned central to the campus, just south 
of Office Building Two and is aligned with the entrance to that building. 
This small structure incorporates the same materials and colors used 
elsewhere on the office buildings, including a sandstone base, which is 
also used for the retail branch building. Staff supports the guardhouse 
location and design as it appears integrated with the campus and will be 
constructed with the same level of quality materials as the main buildings. 
The RidgeGate DRC also approved the design of the guardhouse. 
 
 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 17 of 90



Charles Schwab Office Campus 
Site Improvement Plan 
Project File # SP14-11R 

7 
 

Landscaping.   
The landscape associated with Phase 2 is largely consistent with the 
approved Phase 1 landscaping. A minor refinement has been made along 
the north side of Office Building Three, with some adjustment from 
evergreen to deciduous trees, resulting in a net increase of 5 trees in that 
area. The modified design helps reinforce the formal pedestrian route and 
entry to the building. 
 
Rows of elm trees are planned along the north and south sides of the 
parking garage, and oak trees will be planted in the medians on the east 
and west sides of the garage. A mix of evergreen and deciduous trees 
along Park Meadows Boulevard will help break up views of the garage 
from the east. The applicant is coordinating with the Rampart Range 
Metro District on streetscape plans and how they are integrated with 
landscaping on site.  
 
Lighting.   
All lighting associated with the site is consistent with the master SIP and 
City requirements. Light poles will be included on the top deck of the 
parking garage. They are 15’ tall poles and will have cutoff, LED fixtures 
that match the type used elsewhere on the campus. Lighting is detailed on 
Sheet 14 of the SIP. 
 
Signage.  
As part of the original SIP, the applicant sought and received approval by 
the Planning Commission to allow a fifth freestanding sign for the campus. 
That request was approved, provided that the office building wall signage 
would be limited to no more than two signs per office building. A condition 
of approval has been added to track that requirement specific to Office 
Building Three.  
 
 

G. PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
The following has been taken directly from the minutes of the March 25, 
2014 planning Commission meeting: 
 
 
1.Charles Schwab Office Campus SIP, 2nd amendment (Phase 2) 
RidgeGate Section 15 Filing 19, Lot 1, #SP14-11R.  
Ms. First introduced the item, describing the nature of the application, the 
project location and the overall SIP for the campus approved in March 
2013. She noted that the amendment includes approval for the design of 
the third planned office building, a second parking structure, an enclosed 
pedestrian bridge, and a small guardhouse. She described the referral 
process and concluded with staff’s finding that the application is in 
conformance with the SIP requirements of the Lone Tree Zoning Code, 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 18 of 90



Charles Schwab Office Campus 
Site Improvement Plan 
Project File # SP14-11R 

8 
 

the Subdivision Code, the Comprehensive Plan, City Design Guidelines 
and the RidgeGate Sub-Area Plan.  She said that staff recommends the 
Planning Commission approve the SIP amendment, subject to final 
approval by the City Public Works Department and subject to the 
maximum amount of building signage being limited to no more than two 
wall mounted identification signs per office building, as described in the 
staff report. 
 
Ms. First introduced Kelly Dunn, with Fentress Architects.  Ms. Dunn 
provided a brief overview of the application and indicated that her client is 
in agreement with the condition regarding building signage. 
 
Mr. Craig Vickers, with Civitas Inc., provided an overview of the site 
features of the campus including circulation elements, landscaping design 
and cross sections that showed the relationship of the grades and the 
proposed landscaping.  
 
Ms. Dunn then reviewed the proposed building materials and colors, 
noting that architectural features, materials and colors of Building Three 
are a continuation of the other two office buildings. She presented images 
of the proposed parking garage, describing how landscaping will screen 
the view of the garage. She noted that Schwab is working with the City of 
Lone Tree on the shuttle program that will provide transportation for 
employees from the Lincoln Station, and how the company will encourage 
use of public transportation. She noted that the proposed pedestrian 
bridge will provide a way for employees of Building Three to access the 
Amenities Building without going outdoors in inclement weather. She then 
reviewed the proposed guardhouse location and design. Ms. Dunn also 
noted that, at the City’s request, the southeast corner of the site is being 
reserved for potential future development, and will not be used for surface 
parking. 
 
Commissioner Steele inquired about the purpose of the proposed 
guardhouse. Ms. Dunn indicated that would have full power and be 
attended at times. It serves as a central point for the roving security 
personnel on the campus. Commissioner Steele asked if there were other 
pedestrian bridges planned in the future. Ms. Dunn replied that there is 
only one bridge needed, as the other two office buildings connect with the 
amenities building at their basement levels.  
 
Commissioner Mikolajczak commented that he was pleased to see the 
second phase happening sooner than originally planned and said the 
campus is a signature piece for Charles Schwab and for Lone Tree. He 
said he liked the natural appearance of the landscaping design. He said 
he was initially concerned about the look of the first parking garage but 
now that it is constructed he feels in blends in quite well. He noted that the 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 19 of 90



Charles Schwab Office Campus 
Site Improvement Plan 
Project File # SP14-11R 

9 
 

second parking garage won’t sit into the topography like the first one, but 
that views of it from the south may eventually be blocked by development. 
Ms. Dunn added that there could potentially be development planned 
south of the second garage, but that nothing was planned at this time. 
 
Commissioner Carlson said she echoed Commissioner Mikolajczak’s 
comments and likes the landscape design. She said the proposal was 
consistent with what was presented last year and she had no additional 
comments. 
 
Commissioner Kirchner said he initially questioned the guardhouse but the 
applicant’s explanation of its purpose made sense. He indicated support 
for the design of the parking garage in terms of how it blends in with the 
campus. He had initially wondered about the grade change at the 
pedestrian bridge but felt the applicant had addressed that in the 
presentation. He indicated he had nothing but a positive reaction to the 
project. 
 
Commissioner Godden asked for clarification about why the site is so 
over-parked compared to the City’s parking requirement. He said it was 
not clear what “density of use” means, as referenced in the application 
materials. Ms. Dunn responded that the amount of parking is based on the 
number of employees Schwab will have on the campus, which will be 
between 3200 and 3500 employees. She said that ease of parking is very 
important for employee retention. She also stated that Schwab intends to 
incentivize alternative transportation for employees. Commissioner 
Godden asked whether there are staggered shifts. Ms. Dunn replied that 
about 85% of employees will arrive between the 7:30am-8:30am peak 
time, with a few arriving earlier or later. Commissioner Godden said it 
seems excessive and expensive to build that much parking. He also asked 
for clarification about references that parking would be reduced over time. 
Ms. First responded that Schwab believes parking demand may be 
reduced over time as employees use alternative modes of transportation 
and travel patterns change. She said it was conceivable that the campus 
parking could be absorbed for use by future development. The intent was 
to preserve undeveloped land at the south side of the campus so as not to 
preclude that possibility in the future. Commissioner Godden said that 
would be a positive scenario.  
 
Commissioner Sippel said she appreciates the use of native grasses. She 
said she was also concerned about the extensive amount of parking, 
almost double the City’s parking requirements. She asked if all of the 
surface parking shown on the plan would be constructed in Phase 2. Ms. 
Dunn replied that it would. Ms. Dunn pointed out that the light rail 
extension to the Sky Ridge stop is not in place yet and they are 
constructing enough parking to meet the needs of the employees. 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 20 of 90



Charles Schwab Office Campus 
Site Improvement Plan 
Project File # SP14-11R 

10 
 

Commissioner Sippel asked if they knew the percentage of employees 
who would use light rail. Ms. Dunn said that was unknown at this time. 
Commissioner Sippel also stated her concern about the large amount of 
surface parking on site in addition to the parking garages. Commissioner 
Sippel asked about snow storage. Mr. Vickers pointed out the designated 
storage locations, primarily at the south end of the site. Commissioner 
Sippel asked whether the irrigation system would have rain sensors. Mr. 
Vickers replied affirmatively and said the irrigation system is state-of-the-
art in terms of water conservation. Water conservation is a critical part of 
obtaining LEED gold and platinum status. 
 
Commissioner Sippel expressed concern with the extensive use of one 
tree species and the tightly spaced rows of elm trees along the parking 
garage and walkways. Specifically, she noted that good elm tree spacing 
is shown in the center of sheet 8 of 17 and with the 4 trees on the top left 
of sheet 9 of 17; whereas the remaining elm trees on sheet 9 of 18 are too 
tightly spaced for their mature growth (indicated by the overlapping 
circles). She said the extensive use of the same species of trees and tight 
spacing can spread disease quickly. Mr. Vickers responded that there is 
tremendous diversity of plants and trees throughout the site and that the 
areas where trees are concentrated is intentional to provide uniformity and 
focal points. Commissioner Sippel noted that CSU is currently conducting 
a study regarding elm disease in several states including Colorado. Mr. 
Vickers said they would be using a disease-resistant species. 
Commissioner Sippel said that while she understands that CSU studies 
indicated that Prospector Elms, proposed here, were found to be one of 
the healthier elm species, they should be spaced according to their mature 
width rather than their initial planting width. Spacing them so closely 
together would not only require extensive pruning and maintenance, but 
greatly increases the potential for disease. Any diseased elms would have 
to be completely removed, including digging up roots, which would be very 
disruptive to a maturely landscaped campus. 
 
Chair Sauder said he shares concerns regarding parking. He also felt the 
layout was problematic relative to traffic impacts at I-25 and Lincoln 
Avenue and that the left turn movement from the I-25 off-ramp at Lincoln 
onto Park Meadows Boulevard is already a big problem. He said he had 
strong concerns regarding the amount of additional traffic adding to 
existing problems at Lincoln and I-25. Commissioner Steele added that it 
was also a concern considering that emergency vehicles use this route to 
get to Sky Ridge Hospital. Chairman Sauder said the City should be 
requiring a thorough analysis of traffic impacts as part of this project. 
Commissioner Sippel also expressed concern about the traffic impacts 
and reiterated the previous promise from Charles Schwab at the initial 
meeting when they said they would tell employees driving to the campus 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 21 of 90



Charles Schwab Office Campus 
Site Improvement Plan 
Project File # SP14-11R 

11 
 

to use the RidgeGate exit and come north or if exiting at Lincoln, they 
should use the Bellwether left turn lane. 
 
Chair Sauder also asked about the safety of the pedestrian area on the 
north side of Building Three. Mr. Vickers clarified that there are no ramps 
in this area; the site is designed to use the fall in grade to eliminate the 
need for ramps. Additionally, the pavement would be heated below the 
surface so that snow and ice would not build up on the north side. Chair 
Sauder then asked if there would be a guardhouse on the north side of the 
campus as the current location alone did not seem very central or offer an 
ability to view the north side of the campus for security purposes. Ms. 
Dunn replied that there will be security cameras throughout the site. 
 
Commissioner Mikolajczak recalled that Public Works Director John 
Cotten presented at an earlier meeting and described traffic as an overall 
issue and not one that was specific to Charles Schwab. Commissioner 
Mikolajczak said he was glad the issue of traffic was raised at this meeting 
and feels it must continuously reviewed by the Planning Commission. 
Commissioner Mikolajczak noted that he recently attended a couple public 
forums where the Mayor spoke and had commented that traffic was one of 
the Mayor’s top priorities, which Commissioner Mikolajczak feels provides 
the leadership and support needed to address a complex issue. He then 
indicated that he recognizes and greatly appreciates when corporations 
step up to provide sponsorship of community events and services, and 
that includes Schwab’s offer of public use of its amphitheater and being on 
the team to develop the Park Meadows Drive shuttle. 
 
Commissioner Steele asked about the timeline for construction. Ms. Dunn 
explained that the retail branch would have a soft opening on May 5th. 
Buildings One and Two, the amenities building and first garage would 
begin occupancy in mid-September and be phased in through the end of 
the year. They expect garage two could be completed by the end of 2014. 
Building Three could have a spring of 2015 occupancy. She said they are 
making every effort to get large cranes off the site before it is occupied by 
a lot of people. Mr. Vickers said that all of the landscaping would be 
installed with Phase 1 with the exception of the amphitheater area, which 
will be used as a construction staging area for Building Three.  
 
Commissioner Godden expressed support for the design of the parking 
garage but said he wants to stay true to his original concerns about the 
office building architecture. He asked for clarification about whether the 
architecture of that building was part of this amendment. Ms. First 
indicated that it was. Commissioner Godden said his concerns were the 
same as expressed at the meeting for the original SIP, where he said he 
felt that the architecture barely met the City Design Guidelines. He said 
staff shared that concern. For a project of this significance, he felt the 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 22 of 90



Charles Schwab Office Campus 
Site Improvement Plan 
Project File # SP14-11R 

12 
 

architecture should be exemplary and meet the community’s expectations, 
not just the client’s. He also reiterated his concern with the form of the site 
plan, saying the suburban corporate campus layout does not fit into the 
urban template of RidgeGate. 
 
Commissioner Sippel reiterated her concern regarding the use of so many 
elm trees along with their close spacing and said if they need to be dug up 
and replaced it will involve a lot of effort and disruption to the site. There 
was consensus that this issue would be expressed as a recommendation 
rather than a condition. 
 
Commissioner Mikolajczak moved to approve the application subject to 
the following conditions recommended by staff, 
 
1. Final approval by the City of Lone Tree Public Works Department; 
 
2. The maximum amount of office building signage shall be limited to 

no more than two wall mounted identification signs per office 
building. It is understood that all signage is subject to administrative 
sign permit approval;  

 
and the recommendation that the applicant re-evaluate the use of elm 
trees and the proposed tight spacing of the elms due to the potential for 
and transfer of disease between trees.   
 
Commissioner Kirchner seconded the motion, which passed with 6 
affirmative votes. Commissioner Godden voted no, for reasons stated in 
the discussion. 
 
 

H. REFERRALS:    
The RidgeGate DRC has approved this project and a letter is included in 
the packet.  
 
Referral agency comments received to date have indicated no objections 
to the project or have included general comments of a procedural or 
technical nature that are not expected to significantly impact the SIP.    
 
A standard condition of approval is recommended to ensure approval by 
the City’s Public Works Department prior to final SIP approval.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 23 of 90



Charles Schwab Office Campus 
Site Improvement Plan 
Project File # SP14-11R 

13 
 

 
 

I. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff finds that the application is in conformance with the SIP requirements 
of the Lone Tree Zoning Code, the Subdivision Code, the Comprehensive 
Plan, City Design Guidelines and the RidgeGate Sub-Area Plan.   
 
Staff recommends approval of the SIP to City Council, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
1. Final approval by the City of Lone Tree Public Works Department. 

 
2. The maximum amount of office building signage shall be limited to no 

more than two wall mounted identification signs per office building. It is 
understood that all signage is subject to administrative sign permit 
approval.     

 
 
END 
 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 24 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 25 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 26 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 27 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 28 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 29 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 30 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 31 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 32 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 33 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 34 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 35 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 36 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 37 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 38 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 39 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 40 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 41 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 42 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 43 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 44 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 45 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 46 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 47 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 48 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 49 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 50 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 51 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 52 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 53 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 54 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 55 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 56 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 57 of 90



DENVER  SERVICE CENTER 25 March 2014
Lone Tree Planning Commission04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 58 of 90



DENVER  SERVICE CENTER 25 March 2014
Lone Tree Planning Commission

Site Master Plan
04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 59 of 90



DENVER  SERVICE CENTER 25 March 2014
Lone Tree Planning Commission

Project Summary

Project Summary

Phase 1

Office Building 1:  187,500 sf
Office Building 2:  187,500 sf
Amenities Center:  75,000 sf

Retail Branch:  17,000 sf

Parking Garage 1:  949 cars

Phase 2

Office Building 3:  187,500 sf
Bridge:  1,200 sf

Guard House:  50 sf

Parking Garage 2:  1,233 cars

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 60 of 90



DENVER  SERVICE CENTER 25 March 2014
Lone Tree Planning Commission

Office 3 Site Sections
04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 61 of 90



DENVER  SERVICE CENTER 25 March 2014
Lone Tree Planning Commission

Parking 2 Site Section
04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 62 of 90



DENVER  SERVICE CENTER 25 March 2014
Lone Tree Planning Commission

Parking 2 Site Section
04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 63 of 90



DENVER  SERVICE CENTER 25 March 2014
Lone Tree Planning Commission

Office 1 Visualization (Office 3 to match)
04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 64 of 90



DENVER  SERVICE CENTER 25 March 2014
Lone Tree Planning Commission

Parking Garage 2 from Park Meadows
04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 65 of 90



DENVER  SERVICE CENTER 25 March 2014
Lone Tree Planning Commission

Parking Garage 2 from Office 1
04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 66 of 90



DENVER  SERVICE CENTER 25 March 2014
Lone Tree Planning Commission

Parking Garage 2 Core
04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 67 of 90



DENVER  SERVICE CENTER 25 March 2014
Lone Tree Planning Commission

Site Master Plan
04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 68 of 90



DENVER  SERVICE CENTER 25 March 2014
Lone Tree Planning Commission

Amenities / Office 3 Bridge Plan
04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 69 of 90



DENVER  SERVICE CENTER 25 March 2014
Lone Tree Planning Commission

Amenities / Office 3 Bridge North

Amenities / Office 3 Bridge

Approximately 30’ long x 40’ wide

Connects the second floor of Office 3
to the upper level of the Amenities Center

Enclosure of curtainwall to match the re-
mainder of the campus buildings

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 70 of 90



DENVER  SERVICE CENTER 25 March 2014
Lone Tree Planning Commission

Amenities / Office 3 Bridge South 
04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 71 of 90



DENVER  SERVICE CENTER 25 March 2014
Lone Tree Planning Commission

Site Master Plan
04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 72 of 90



DENVER  SERVICE CENTER 25 March 2014
Lone Tree Planning Commission

Guard House from Office 2

Guard House

Approximately 10’ long x 8’ wide

Located across Schwab Way from
Office Building 2.

Enclosure of curtainwall and Colorado
Buff Sandstone with metal panel fascia 
to match the Branch.

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 73 of 90



DENVER  SERVICE CENTER 25 March 2014
Lone Tree Planning Commission

Guard House from South
04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 74 of 90



DENVER  SERVICE CENTER 25 March 2014
Lone Tree Planning Commission

Possible Future Development
04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 75 of 90



 

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
TO:  Mayor Gunning and City Council 
 
FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director 
  Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner 
   
DATE: April 9, 2014 
 
FOR: April 15, 2014 City Council Meeting 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution, 14-08, ADOPTING A PLAN FOR THE AREA WITHIN 

THREE MILES OF THE CITY BOUNDARY, #MI-14-20 
   
 
Summary 
The attached resolution and plan maps have been prepared to meet the 
requirement of Section 31-12-105(1)(e) of the Colorado Revised Statutes, which 
mandates all municipalities prepare a three-mile plan prior to the completion of 
any annexation. Such plans are required to be updated annually. 
 
Cost 
There is no cost associated with this resolution. 
 
Suggested Motion or Recommended Action 
I move to approve Resolution 14-08, ADOPTING A PLAN FOR THE AREA 
WITHIN THREE MILES OF THE CITY BOUNDARY. 
 
Background  
Pursuant to Section 31-12-105(1)(e) of the Colorado Revised Statutes, as a 
precondition to any annexation, the annexing municipality must have in place a 
plan that includes “the proposed location, character, and extent of streets, 
subways, bridges, waterways, waterfronts, parkways, playgrounds, squares, 
parks, aviation fields, other public ways, grounds, open spaces, public utilities, 
and terminals for water, light sanitation, transportation and power to be provided 
by the municipality, as well as the proposed land uses for the area.”   
 
The 2014 Three-Mile Plan is the same as adopted in previous years and includes 
a narrative and accompanying maps.   The plan adopts by reference the master 
plans of various surrounding jurisdictions to the extent they do not conflict with 
the City of Lone Tree’s Comprehensive Plan.  
  

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 76 of 90



 

 

 
Summary of Proposed 2014 Three-Mile Plan 
The three-mile planning area boundary extends three miles out from the City of 
Lone Tree’s municipal boundaries and includes land in unincorporated Douglas 
and Arapahoe counties.   
 
The objective of adopting the three-mile plan is to provide comprehensive 
consideration of the land use goals of adjacent jurisdictions in planning for future 
growth and urbanization. 
 
Douglas County’s current Comprehensive Plan, adopted in 2008, includes land 
use policies for the future development of its unincorporated areas.   The County 
Plan recommends urban development in the areas included in Lone Tree’s three-
mile area with the exception of Grandview Estates, the area south of Lone Tree’s 
Urban Growth Area, within the Bluffs Regional Park, and the Backcountry 
Wilderness Area of Highlands Ranch. 
 
Arapahoe County’s current Comprehensive Plan, adopted in 2012, includes land 
use policies for the future development of the unincorporated areas.  The 
County’s plan recommends employment or urban residential land uses for the 
areas within Lone Tree’s three-mile planning area. 
 
The City of Lone Tree recognizes these land use recommendations to the extent 
they do not conflict with the City’s plans and policies for the area. 
 
The plan also incorporates by reference the service plans of water, sewer, 
metropolitan, transportation, parks and recreation, other special districts and the 
public utility companies serving that portion of Lone Tree’s three-mile area. 
 
   

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 77 of 90



 

 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-08 

 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A PLAN FOR THE AREA WITHIN 
THREE MILES OF THE CITY BOUNDARY 

 
WHEREAS, Colorado state law, Section 31-12-105(1)(e)(I) C.R.S., provides that prior to 

the completion of any annexation within a three mile area of a municipal boundary, the annexing 
municipality shall have in place a plan for that area; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the plan is to describe generally the proposed location, character, and extent 
of streets, subways, bridges, waterways, waterfronts, parkways, playgrounds, squares, parks, 
aviation fields, other public ways, grounds, open spaces, public utilities, and terminals for water, 
light, sanitation, transportation and power to be provided by the municipality, as well as the 
proposed land uses for the area; and  
 
 WHEREAS, state law requires that the plan be updated at least annually. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO, THAT:  
 
 1. In compliance with Section 31-12-105(1)(e)(I) C.R.S., the City Council hereby adopts 
the City of Lone Tree Three-Mile Plan, including the Three-Mile Planning Area Map, attached 
as Exhibit A, as the plan for the unincorporated area within three miles of the City of Lone Tree 
boundary.  
 
 2.  The City of Lone Tree Three-Mile Plan shall be updated at least once annually.  
 
 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 15th DAY OF APRIL, 2014. 
       
 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
 
 
 

By:       
      James D. Gunning, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
         (S E A L) 
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 78 of 90



EXHIBIT A 
 

 
CITY OF LONE TREE THREE-MILE PLAN  

 
 
SECTION 1 - INTRODUCTION  
 
This document constitutes the City of Lone Tree’s Three-Mile Plan for the unincorporated area 
within three miles of the City’s perimeter, as required by and in conformance with Section 31-
12-105 (1)(e)(l) of the Colorado Revised Statutes (C.R.S.). The Three-Mile Plan is comprised of 
seven sections, including this introduction. Some sections are self-contained land use plans, 
which are incorporated into the Three-Mile Plan in their entirety by reference. Section 2 contains 
the description of the plan, clarifications and elaborations. 
 
SECTION 2 - DESCRIPTION OF THE PLAN, CLARIFICATIONS, AND 
ELABORATIONS  
 
This Three-Mile Plan addresses all unincorporated lands within three miles of the corporate 
limits of the City of Lone Tree, as shown on the accompanying map. While the map includes the 
incorporated areas of Greenwood Village, City of Centennial, City of Castle Pines North and the 
Town of Parker, the Three-Mile Plan does not apply to these incorporated areas. 
 
The proposed location, character, and extent of elements of the plan are described as follows: 
 
Streets: As identified in the Transportation section of the Lone Tree Comprehensive Plan and 
Transportation Plans for Arapahoe and Douglas County.  
 
Subways: No subways exist or are planned for the area.  
 
Bridges: No bridges other than those planned for the RidgeGate Planned Development to cross 
drainages and those described in the Transportation Plans for Arapahoe and Douglas County are 
planned at this time.  
 
Waterways: No changes are proposed at this time.  
 
Waterfronts: No waterfronts are planned at this time.  
 
Parkways, playgrounds, squares, and parks and open space: As identified in the Lone Tree 
Comprehensive Plan and the Arapahoe and Douglas County Plans.  
 
Aviation fields: As identified in the plans for Centennial Airport.  
 
Other public ways, grounds, and open spaces: As identified in the Lone Tree Comprehensive 
Plan and the Arapahoe and Douglas County Plans.  
 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 79 of 90



City of Lone Tree Three-Mile Plan 
Exhibit A 
Page 2 
 
Public Utilities: As identified in the service plan of the applicable district or utility.  
 
Terminals for water, light, sanitation and power: As identified in the service plan of the 
applicable district or utility.  
 
Transportation: As identified in the Transportation Plan section of the Lone Tree  
Comprehensive Plan, and in the Transportation Plans for Douglas and Arapahoe  
Counties.  
 
Land Use: As identified in the City of Lone Tree Comprehensive Plan as the primary guiding 
plan and the Douglas or Arapahoe County Plans as the secondary guiding plans for land use 
issues.  
 
SECTION 3 - CITY OF LONE TREE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 
The Three-Mile Plan incorporates by reference the most recent version of the City of Lone 
Tree’s Comprehensive Plan adopted by the City’s Planning Commission and approved by the 
City Council in April 2007, as amended. That Plan establishes the City’s Planning and Urban 
Growth boundary - that area where future growth and development is directed (also depicted on 
the Three-Mile Plan Map). All subsequent amendments to the City’s Comprehensive Plan are 
hereby incorporated by reference into the Three-Mile Plan.  
 
SECTION 4 - ARAPAHOE AND DOUGLAS COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLANS 
 
The Three-Mile Plan incorporates by reference the Arapahoe County Comprehensive Plan, as 
amended, and the Douglas County Comprehensive Plan, as amended, except any portions of 
those plans that are inconsistent with the City of Lone Tree’s Comprehensive Plan.  
 
SECTION 5 - SPECIAL DISTRICT SERVICE PLANS 
 
The Three-Mile Plan incorporates by reference the service plans of water, sewer, metropolitan, 
transportation, parks and recreation, and other special districts serving that portion of Lone 
Tree’s three-mile area, except any portion of such plans that are inconsistent with the City of 
Lone Tree’s Comprehensive Plan.  
 
SECTION 6 - UTILITY SERVICE PLANS 
 
The Three-Mile Plan incorporates by reference the service plans of the utilities which furnish 
light and power for that portion of the three-mile area approved by the City of Lone Tree, and all 
other service plans within the area except any portion of such plans which are inconsistent with 
the City of Lone Tree’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 

  
04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 80 of 90



CITY OF LONE TREE THREE-MILE PLANNING AREA MAP

Arapahoe County
Douglas County

Centennial

Greenwood Village

Town of Parker

Centennial Airport

Cherry Hills Village
Denver

Arapahoe County

Littleton

Aurora

Foxfield

Aurora

Aurora

Parker

Lone Tree

Castle Rock

Castle Rock

Castle Pines

C-470
I-25

Douglas County

0 1 2 3 40.5
Miles

®

Legend
Lone Tree Planning Area & Urban Growth Area
3 Mile Plan Boundary
Aurora
Castle Pines
Castle Rock
Centennial
Cherry Hills Village
Denver
Englewood
Foxfield
Greenwood Village
Littleton
Lone Tree
Parker
Unincorporated Arapahoe County
Unincorporated Douglas County

Englewood

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 81 of 90



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 82 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 83 of 90



04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 84 of 90



 

 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-09 

 
A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER  

TO THE YOUTH COMMISSION  
FOR THE CITY OF LONE TREE 

 
WHEREAS, by Resolution 09-02, the City Council created the Youth Commission (the 

Commission) which advises the City on matters pertaining to youth and youth interest in the City 
of Lone Tree; and 
 
 WHEREAS, by Resolution 09-02, the Commission is comprised of not more than seven 
and not less than five resident members, all of whom are residents of Lone Tree and currently 
enrolled in 8th through 12th grade; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Youth Commission currently has one vacancy due to the resignation of 
Jack Johnson, whose term expires on August 31, 2016; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to appoint one Youth Commission member to fill 

that vacancy to expire on August 31, 2016, such appointments to be effective on the date of 
expiration of their previous term; and 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LONE 
TREE, COLORADO: 

 
That Michelle Timmins is hereby appointed to the Youth Commission to fill the vacancy  

created by the resignation of Jack Johnson for the remainder  
of Mr. Johnson’s term, which expires on August 31, 2016.  

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 15th DAY OF APRIL, 2014. 

 
      CITY OF LONE TREE 
 
 

       
     James D. Gunning, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
          (S E A L) 
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 85 of 90



 

 

 
STAFF REPORT      

 
TO:   Mayor Gunning and City Council 

FROM:  Neil Rutledge 

DATE:  April 9, 2014 

FOR:   April 15, 2014 City Council Meeting   

SUBJECT: Resolution 14-10, SUPPORTING A CHARTER AMENDMENT TO 
REQUIRE A MAJORITY VOTE FOR THE ELECTION OF MAYOR 
AND PROVIDING FOR RUNOFF ELECTIONS FOR MAYOR  

Summary  
The City Council passed an Ordinance submitting a Ballot Question to City voters at the 
regular municipal election to be held on May 6, 2014, amending the Charter to require a 
majority vote for the election of Mayor and providing for runoff elections. This Resolution 
puts the City Council on record supporting the Charter Amendment. 
 
Cost 
There is no cost to the City. 
 
Suggested Motion 
I move to approve Resolution 14-10, supporting a Charter Amendment requiring a 
majority vote for the Election of Mayor and providing for runoff elections for Mayor.  
 
Background 
If more than two candidates run for the office of Mayor, it is possible the Mayor of Lone 
Tree could be elected by a plurality of the voters and not by a majority of the registered 
electors. In order to facilitate a majority requirement and a runoff election process, the 
City Charter needs to be amended. This Resolution puts the City Council on record 
supporting the Charter Amendment and urging the voters to approve the Ballot 
Question at the regular municipal election to be held on May 6, 2014. 
 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 86 of 90



CITY OF LONE TREE 
RESOLUTION 14-10 

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING A CHARTER AMENDMENT  
TO REQUIRE A MAJORITY VOTE FOR THE ELECTION OF MAYOR  

AND PROVIDING FOR RUNOFF ELECTIONS FOR MAYOR 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Lone Tree Home Rule Charter provides that the Mayor 
be elected from the City at large. As a result, the Mayor represents all of the residents of 
the City of Lone Tree; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Charter and election laws currently provide for the election to the 

office of Mayor by the candidate receiving the most votes; and  
 
WHEREAS, if more than two candidates run for the office of Mayor, it is possible 

the Mayor of Lone Tree could be elected by a plurality of the voters and not by a majority 
of the registered electors; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is also possible a special interest candidate representing a small 

faction of voters, or a candidate manipulating the electoral system by adding candidates 
to dilute the vote, could be elected Mayor by a plurality if three or more candidates are on 
the ballot; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council passed an Ordinance submitting a Ballot Question 
to City voters at the regular municipal election to be held on May 6, 2014, amending the 
Charter to require a majority vote for the election of Mayor; and  

 
WHEREAS, in the event no candidate receives a majority of the votes cast, the 

Charter Amendment provides for a runoff election; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council believes that it is in the best interests of the people 

of Lone Tree that the Charter be amended so that the person serving as the Mayor of the 
City has the support and endorsement of a majority of the voting citizens of the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the provisions of the City’s Election Ordinance, consistent with state 

law, allow the City to put forth this Resolution as a statement of support for voter 
approval of the Charter Amendment; 

 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO: 
 
 
  

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 87 of 90



 

 

 
The City Council of the City of Lone Tree supports the adoption of an amendment 

to the City of Lone Tree Home Rule Charter, requiring a majority vote for the election of 
Mayor and providing for runoff elections for Mayor, and urges its citizens to vote to 
approve the Ballot Question at the May 6, 2014, regular election. 
 
 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 15th DAY OF APRIL, 2014. 
 
 
 
      CITY OF LONE TREE 
 
 
      By:      ______ 
        James D. Gunning, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST: 

 
       (SEAL) 

          
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk                     
 
 

 
  

  

 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 88 of 90



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

      
 
TO:   Mayor Gunning and City Council 

FROM:  Lisa Rigsby Peterson, Executive Director LTAC 

DATE:  April 10, 2014 

FOR:   April 15, 2014 City Council Meeting 

SUBJECT: Resolution 14-11, DESIGNATING LONE TREE ARTS 
CENTER AS THE SUCCESSOR ENTITY TO THE LONE 
TREE ARTS COMMISSION FOR FUNDS TO SUPPORT 
CULTURAL PROGRAMS 

Summary 
As the City prepares its Scientific and Cultural District Tier II application for 
funding, the SCFD requires clear guidance as to which City entity will be 
requesting certification.  This resolution authorizes the Lone Tree Arts Center to 
act as the qualifying City entity. 
 
Cost 
None. 
 
Suggested Motion  
I move to approve Resolution 14-11, DESIGNATING LONE TREE ARTS 
CENTER AS THE SUCCESSOR ENTITY TO THE LONE TREE ARTS 
COMMISSION FOR FUNDS TO SUPPORT CULTURAL PROGRAMS. 
 
Background 
The City has received funds from SCFD since 2005 under the application of the 
Arts Commission.With the opening of the Lone Tree Arts Center, the City’s 
cultural programs have grown in size to make an application to the next tier of 
funding from SCFD possible. Because qualifying entities must prove five years of 
programming in order to qualify for Tier II funding, this resolution will consolidate 
the City’s nine year history of presenting cultural programs and shift responsibility 
for funding applications to the Lone Tree Arts Center.  Staff has discussed this 
with SCFD personnel, and this step is required for our imminent Tier II 
application for certification. 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 89 of 90



 

 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-11 

 
A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING LONE TREE ARTS CENTER  

AS THE SUCCESSOR ENTITY TO THE LONE TREE ARTS COMMISSION  
FOR FUNDS TO SUPPORT CULTURAL PROGRAMS  

 
WHEREAS, the Lone Tree Arts Commission, an advisory committee for the City of 

Lone Tree,  was created by resolution in 1999 to promote and encourage the development and 
public awareness and interest in the fine and performing arts in the City of Lone Tree and 
surrounding areas; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Lone Tree Arts Commission was  granted eligibility to receive funding 

from the Scientific and Cultural Facilities District (SCFD) as a local government entity in 2005 
and has received funding through the Douglas County Cultural Council since that time; and  

 
WHEREAS, over time, the programs and activities under the Lone Tree Arts 

Commission have grown significantly, and in 2011 were expanded to include activities at the 
Lone Tree Arts Center; and  

 
WHEREAS, with the adoption of the 2014 annual City budget, all cultural activities of 

the City of Lone Tree have been integrated under the umbrella of the Cultural and Community 
Services Fund, supervised by the Lone Tree Arts Center with support from the Lone Tree Arts 
Commission, which continues to serve as an advisory committee for cultural activities and 
applies for funds to support the provision of cultural programs, including funding from the 
SCFD; 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LONE 
TREE, COLORADO: 
 

The Lone Tree Arts Center is now designated as the successor entity to the 
Lone Tree Arts Commission for purposes of applying for funds to support 
cultural programs in the City of Lone Tree and surrounding areas. 

 
 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 15TH DAY OFAPRIL, 2014. 

 
      CITY OF LONE TREE 
 
 

       
     James D. Gunning, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
          (S E A L) 
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 

04/15/14 City Council Packet Page 90 of 90


	2014-04-15 CC Agenda
	2014-04-15 CC Agenda
	2014-04-01 CC Minutes
	FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director
	DATE: April 2, 2014
	FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director
	DATE: April 2, 2014

	Schwab-complete
	cs staff report 1 of 4
	FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director
	DATE: April 8, 2014
	FOR:  April 15, 2014 Planning Commission Meeting
	This parcel is platted as Lot 1, RidgeGate Section 15, and Filing 19, which was approved by the City Council on September 18, 2012. The SIP is consistent with the plat, which established the lot, tracts and right-of-way alignments shown on this SIP. T...
	F. DESCRIPTION:
	I. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION:
	Staff finds that the application is in conformance with the SIP requirements of the Lone Tree Zoning Code, the Subdivision Code, the Comprehensive Plan, City Design Guidelines and the RidgeGate Sub-Area Plan.
	Staff recommends approval of the SIP to City Council, subject to the following conditions:
	1. Final approval by the City of Lone Tree Public Works Department.
	2. The maximum amount of office building signage shall be limited to no more than two wall mounted identification signs per office building. It is understood that all signage is subject to administrative sign permit approval.
	END

	Schwab 2 of 4
	Schwab SIP 3 of 4 red kf
	schwab 4 of 4

	Res14-08-threemileplan Complete
	1 of 3 - 3MilePlan_FinalCC_StaffRpt_2014
	TO:  Mayor Gunning and City Council
	FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director
	DATE: April 9, 2014

	3 of 3 - Resolution 14-08 Three Mile Plan 2014
	2 of 3 - 2014_ThreeMilePlan_ExA_Attachments

	Res 14-09 Youth Commission Appt
	Resolution 14-10 Supporting Charter Amendment Mayor - Staff Report
	Resolution 14-10 Supporting Charter Amendment Mayor
	Council briefing  SCFD resolution
	SCFD Council Resolution Draft



